
Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 11, 2023 Page 1 
 

 
AGENDA 

Bentley Town Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday April 11, 2023 

6:45pm Regular Meeting 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
 

2. Indigenous Acknowledgement 
 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and Home of Metis 
Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement involving mutuality 
and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First 
Nations whose footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 

3. Amendments & Acceptance of Agenda 
 
 

4. Adoption of Previous Minutes:  
 

a) Regular Meeting of Council March 28, 2023 
 
 

5. Financial: 
 

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230314 to 20230269 
 
 

6. New Business 
 

a) Bentley Minor Soccer Letter & Delegation 
 

b) Subdivision Names (Re-Naming - New Beginnings Subdivision) 
 

c) Bylaw 240/2023 a Bylaw to Repeal Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth 
Smart as CAO 

 
 

7. Correspondence 
 

a) Council Highlights Lacombe County March 23, 2023 
 

 
8. Other Business 

  
a) Bylaw 127-2008 Procedural Bylaw (discussion surrounding delegations and 

decisions of Council) 
 
 



Regular Council Meeting Agenda April 11, 2023 Page 2 
 

 
9. Council Reports 

 
a) Mayor Rathjen 
b) Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 
c) Councillor Eastman 
d) Councillor Valiquette  
e) Councillor Hansen 

 
  
10. Adjournment       



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 28, 2023 
 

 

Minutes of the Regular of the Council of the Town of Bentley 

 March 28, 2023 

Date and Place  Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council of the Town of Bentley 
held Tuesday, March 28, 2028, at 6:45 p.m., in the Bentley Municipal Office 
 
 

In Attendance Mayor Greg Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Grimsdale 

   Councillor Hansen 
   Councillor Valiquette 
   Councillor Eastman 
   CAO, Marc Fortais 
 
   
Call to Order Mayor Rathjen called the regular meeting to order at 6:45pm 

 

Indigenous  
Acknowledgement “We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 

Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic agreement 
involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the many First Nations, 
Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose footsteps have marked these 
lands.” 

Read by Mayor Rathjen 
 
 

Agenda 

Motion 96/2023 Moved by Councillor Hansen, “THAT the agenda of 
the March 28, 2023, regular meeting of mayor and council be accepted.” 

        Carried 

 

Previous Minutes   
Motion 97/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT the 
minutes of the March 28, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council be accepted.” 
 
        Carried 
 

 
Financial  

a) Prepaid Cheque Listing – Cheques No. 20230179 to 20230213 
 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 28, 2023 
 

Motion 98/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT Cheques No. 
20230179 to 20230213 be received for information.” 

           Carried 

New Business  
 

a) Delegation Bentley Farmer’s Market – New Request for Funding 
 

Motion 99/2023 Moved by Councillor Eastman, “THAT Mayor and 
Council approve the application for funding from the Bentley Farmers Market 
in the amount of $5,000 to be used for fencing, staffing, cleaning supplies 
and cleaning costs.” 

        Carried 

 

b) Town of Bentley 2022 Financial Statements and Auditors Report 
- Delegation Grant Stange (RSM0 
- Mr. Stange presented the 2022 Financial Statements for the 

Town of Bentley. 
 

Motion 100/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT Mayor 
and Council accept and approve the 2022 Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Independent Auditors report for the year ending December 
31, 2022, as prepared and presented by RSM Ltd.” 

Carried 

 

c) Bentley Library Request for funding 

Motion 101/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Grimsdale, “THAT Mayor 
and Council approve a donation of $600.00 to the Bentley Public Library in 
support of the 2023 Petting Zoo to be held during rodeo weekend.” 

        Carried 

Correspondence 

a) Council Highlights Lacombe County March 9, 2023 
 

b) Parkland Regional Library Annual Report 
 

c)  Parkland Community Planning Update 
 

Motion 102/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT 
Correspondence items a) to c) be accepted as information. “ 

        Carried 

 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes March 28, 2023 
 

Other Business 

   None 

Adjournment  
 Motion 103/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT the regular 

meeting of mayor and council be adjourned at 7:36pm.” 
 
         Carried 
 
        
 
         
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 

Mayor Greg Rathjen      CAO Marc Fortais 











Apr 11, 2023, New Business – Subdivision Names – Re-naming New Beginnings Subdivision 

 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  April 11, 2023 
      
Agenda Item: New Business:  Re-naming New Beginnings Subdivision 
 
 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT Mayor and Council provide recommendations for a new name for the New Beginnings 
Subdivision; AND 
 
THAT Administration undertake a survey of the recommended names provided by the Mayor and 
Council so that the Public in the Town of Bentley has an opportunity to vote and select the best name 
possible for the subdivision. 
 
SUMMARY & BACKGROUND 
 
The New Beginnings subdivision began through the creation of the Summersault Area Structure Plan 
in 2014. The overarching plan covers 17.81 hectares (44 acres of land). The area is legally described 
as S.W. 26-40-I-W5M and is located in the northeaster portion of the Town of Bentley to the north of 
55th Avenue and east of 49th Street. 
 
A development agreement was signed in January of 2014 and a Bylaw was passed  on August 19, 
2014. This area included the former Northeast Area Structure Plan, which was adopted in 1993. 
 
The plan was intended to establish the framework for the future subdivision and development of the 
lands included in the Area Structure Plan. By 2018 a foreclosure order was issued in relation to the 
proposed subdivision, and subsequently the town acquired the land through the issuance of borrowing 
bylaw 207/2018 for $675,000.  
 
In May of 2019 an additional borrowing bylaw was approved in the amount of $512,000, this coupled 
with the $160,000 deposit that the town held from the developer completed the initial servicing of the 
multi family lots within the subdivision.  
 
The subdivided lands and completed multi family lots were named New Beginnings Subdivision 
(Attachment #1) through previous administration and council. Due to many factors including COVID, 
and lack of interest in multi family housing in Bentley the lots did not sell and there was little interest in 
them.  
 



Apr 11, 2023, New Business – Subdivision Names – Re-naming New Beginnings Subdivision 

In March of 2020 Mayor and Council approved Bylaw 216/2020 to create general architectural 
controls to ensure that the development of all principal buildings in the R2B district would require to be 
constructed in a way that contributes to an attractive and aesthetically pleasing appearance along the 
public street.  
 
Since that time and beginning In October 2021 administration revisited the subdivision and Mayor and 
Council supported a re-configuration of the lots to Single Family Dwelling Lots (Attachment #2). It has 
taken some time, but the services are consolidated, they have been upgraded to 200 amp servicing 
and the descriptive plan showing the lot consolidations has been registered at land titles. The 
additional costs for re-servicing was completed under budget for a total of $134,022.00.  
 
RATIONAL FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 

• Through a strong commitment from Mayor and Council’s the work was completed in a 
reasonable time frame and at a cost that came in under budget. The lots are now ready to be 
re-listed for sale as Single Family Dwelling lots for reasonable prices. They will be advertised 
on the Town’s new website, which is scheduled to launch in the next couple of weeks. 

 
• This is an exiting time for Bentley and there was significant feedback from the public during the 

public open house held on July 5, 2022, that consideration should be given to changing the 
name of the subdivision. 

 
• Prior to aggressively marketing the lots, Council should have the opportunity to consider 

renaming the lots, to positively reflect the new opportunity to invest in affordable housing in an 
amazing area of the Town of Bentley. 

 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

• Reconfiguration costs totaled $134,022.00 and the original budget was estimated at 
$237,226.89 and was presented to Mayor and Council at an open public meeting on July 12, 
2022. 
 

• Significant savings were obtained in the water consolidations costs due to the successful 
company transitioning between jobs and less costs in mobilization and demobilization. In 
addition, no contingency was needed as costs came in on or underbudget. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1.) Original Subdivision Map 
2.) New Subdivision Map 

 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    







April 11, 2023, New Business – Repeal of Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO 

 
 
Agenda Date:  April 11, 2023 
      
Agenda Item: New Business: Bylaw 240-2023 being a bylaw to repeal Bylaw 88-04 a 

bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the Town of Bentley 
 
 
 
LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENT/AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS in accordance with section 63(1) and (2) of the Municipal Government Act , Revised 
Statutes of Alberta 2000 Chapter M-26. 
 
63(1) “A council of a municipality may, by bylaw, revise any of its bylaws or any one or more 
provisions of them in accordance with this section. 
 
63(2) “A bylaw under this section may 
 

(a) Omit and provide for repeal of a bylaw or a provision of a bylaw that is inoperative, obsolete, 
expired, spent or otherwise ineffective.;” AND 

 
WHEREAS Bylaw No 88-04, being a bylaw in the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to 
appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the Town of Bentley; AND 
 
WHEREAS Ms. Smart retired from the organization at the beginning of 2020 and therefore the Bylaw 
is no longer relevant. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, The Council of the Town of Bentley, duly assembled, hereby repeals the 
following By-law: 
 
By-law No. 88-04 a bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO for the Town of Bentley 
 

 
This By-law No.240/2023 shall come into effect on the date of final passing thereof. 
 
 
Read a first time this ___ day of April 2023 
 
Read a second time this ___ day of April 2023 
 
Read a third and final time and passed this ___ day of April 2023 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
Administration continues to review bylaws and policies for the Town of Bentley. Through this process 
it was discovered that Bylaw 88-04 (Attachment #1), has never been repealed. The bylaw is no 
longer relevant as Ms. Smart left the municipality in early 2020 and in addition on November 29, 2019, 



April 11, 2023, New Business – Repeal of Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO 

the minutes show there was a special meeting held by Mayor and Council to appoint Marc Fortais as 
the CAO for the Town of Bentley due to Ms. Smart’s retirement (Attachment #2).  
 
No new bylaw is needed to appoint Marc Fortas as the CAO as the resolution contained in the 
minutes from the November 29, 2019, meeting was sufficient to do so. In addition, the roles and 
responsibilities of the CAO are outlined in the CAO Bylaw 108-06 (Attachment #3). It should also be 
noted that there is a formally executed contract between the Town of Bentley and the current CAO. 
 
The repeal of Bylaw 88-04 is a housekeeping item at this time. 

 
BUDGET AND FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 

• None 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 
THAT Mayor and Council give three readings to Bylaw No. 240/2023 (Attachment 4) being a bylaw to 
repeal Bylaw 88-04, being a bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1.) Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO 
2.) Minutes November 29, 2019, Special Meeting 
3.) Bylaw 108-06 CAO Bylaw 
4.) Bylaw 240-2023 a bylaw to repeal bylaw 88-04 

 
 
        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    



















By-law No. 240/2023 Repeal of Bylaw 88-04 a Bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO for the Town of 
Bentley                                                                                                                                           
  
 

 
 
 

By-law No. 240/2023 
 

 
Being a By-law of the Town of Bentley, in the Province of Alberta, to repeal Bylaw 88-04 a 
Bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the Town of Bentley 
 
 
WHEREAS Bylaw No 88-04 being a bylaw in the Town of Bentley in the Province of Alberta to 
appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the Town; AND 
 
WHEREAS Bylaw No. 88-04 is outdated and no longer relevant as per the appointment of CAO 
Marc Fortais through the special meeting minutes of the November 29, 2019, meeting of Bentley 
Town Council.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, The Council of the Town of Bentley, duly assembled, hereby repeals the 
following By-law: 
 
By-law No. 88-04 a bylaw to appoint Elizabeth Smart as the CAO for the Town 
 

 
This By-law No. 240/2023 shall come into effect on the date of final passing thereof. 
 
 
Read a first time this ___ day of April 2023 
 
Read a second time this ___ day of April 2023 
 
Read a third and final time and passed this ___ day of April 2023 
 
 
 
        __________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
        __________________________ 
        Chief Administrative Officer 



 

 
  

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
                                                     MARCH 23, 2023  

  
 
SANDY POINT TRAIL 
A proposal was presented for the paving of Sandy Point Trail from Highway 12 A to Twp. Road 41-0. 
The project provides for subgrade preparation, base gravel installation and paving.  The County 
Manager was authorized to issue a Request for Pricing for the paving of the Sandy Point Trail, and 
further, to award the County’s portion of this trail (from Highway 12A to the entrance of the Lakewood 
Meadows subdivision) to the successful proponent at an upset cost of $140,000. 

 
OPERATIONS POLICY REVIEW 
Amendments to Policies OP (27) Utility Approach Inspections, OP (34) Bridge Material Inventory 
Management, and OP (44) Roadside Memorials received Council approval. 
 
ROAD CLOSURE & SALE 
By resolution of Council, the County Manager was directed to proceed with the process to close Road 
Plan 442EO. The proposal is to close a portion of the Road Plan and sell it to the adjacent landowner 
so the property can be consolidated with his land on the Pt. NW 25-41-2 W5M (Plan 2222269, Block 
1, Lot 1).  This proposal will be circulated to interested parties for comment, and further, a report on 
the comments and cancellation request will be presented at the April 27, 2023 Council meeting. 

 
NURSE PRACTIONER SUPPORT 
By resolution of Council, support for the Nurse Practitioner Program will be provided by writing letters to 
MLA Ron Orr and MLA Jason Nixon urging that the Province of Alberta create a reimbursement model 
for Alberta Health Services that supports independent practice for Nurse Practitioners.  Lacombe County 
will also share the current Nurse Practitioners 1 in 4 Albertans campaign via the County News and on 
social media platforms. 
 
LACOMBE HISTORICAL SOCIETY  
A request for one-time additional funding in the amount of $9,500 from the Lacombe and District 
Historical Society to cover their unexpected shortfall in provincial grant funding for 2023 received the 
approval of Council.  
 
CLIVE ATHLETIC AND AGRICULTURAL SOCIETY CAPITAL FUNDING REQUEST  
An RC (1) funding request from the Clive Athletic and Agricultural Society for their Arena Ice Plant 
Upgrade Project was approved  for funding of 46%, to a maximum of $88,843, subject to the Society 
raising the balance of the funds towards the project.   
 
MIRROR UTILTY ACCOUNT WRITE OFF 
Council reviewed the details of a billing account error identified by a utility customer in the Hamlet of 
Mirror.  The cancellation of $1,162.05 for incorrectly levied utility charges on the account for the period 
2019 to 2021 received Council approval. 
 
PROPERTY TAX CANCELLATION REQUEST 
Council reviewed a request from a property owner seeking the cancellation of a portion of the 2022 tax 
levy due to the complete loss of a commercial building by fire.  Council approved the cancellation of the 
property taxes on the building applicable to the period May 5, 2022 to December 31, 2022 in the amount 
of $5,495.   
 



                                                                                      
 
 
  
 

 RR 3, Lacombe, AB T4L 2N3 (Tel) 403.782.6601 (Fax) 403.782.3820 www.lacombecounty.com 
 

 
 
FCM ALBERTA FOCUSSED RECEPTION 
Sturgeon County is soliciting support from other rural municipalities to promote Alberta through 
educational presentations and entertainment at the upcoming 2023 Federated Canadian Municipalities 
(FCM) Convention in Toronto.  Participating municipalities would have an opportunity to showcase their 
community through a video loop.  Lacombe County will support the initiative by providing financial 
support to a maximum of $5,000.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Next Regular Council Meeting is 
Thursday, April 13, 2023 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
Next Committee of the Whole Meeting is 

April 4, 2023 – 9:00 a.m. 
                                                    

Lacombe County Administration Building 
 

**For more details from Lacombe County Council meetings, please refer to the meeting 
minutes. All meeting minutes are posted on the website (www.lacombecounty.com) 

after approval.  

http://www.lacombecounty.com/

























	Agenda - April 11,  2023 ,Regular Council Meeting.pdf
	April 11,  2023 Regular Meeting of Council - Minutes of the March 28, 2023 
	Cheque Listing 20230314 to 20230269
	New Business - Delegation Bentley Minor Soccer Association Letter
	New Business - Naming of New Beginnings Subdivision 2023
	Attachment #1 - Original Subdivision Map
	Attachment #1 - Registered Plan - New Beginnings Subdivision
	New Business -Bylaw 240-2023 a Bylaw to Repeal Bylaw 88-04 a Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO
	Attachment #1 - Bylaw 108-06 CAO Bylaw
	Attachment #2 - Bylaw 88-04 Bylaw to appoint a Chief Administrative Officer (needs repeal)
	Attachment #3 - November 29, 2019 Minutes - Special Meeting.docx
	Attachment #4 - By-law No. 240-2023 - Bylaw to repeal Bylaw 88-04 a Bylaw to Appoint Elizabeth Smart as CAO for the Town of Bentley
	Correspondance Lacombe County Council Highlights March 23, 2023
	Other Business - Bylaw 127-2008 Procedural Bylaw

